
TIDINGS -JARRETT HOUSE 

The Tidings - Jarrett House, from its beginings between 1857-1864, was 
planned as a two family dwelling. In its original state, the duplex had a 
sizable lantern that provided a fine view south of the Joppa ridge. The house 
is a good example of the bracketed Italianate style of architecture, a form that 
was quite popular in Towson during the second hall' of the. 19th c. 

Further significance is gained th.rough the fact that the building is known 
for the locally significant citizens who both lived and had professional offices 
there. These included Drs. Edwin Tidings and Jackson Piper as well as Dr. James 
H. Jarrett, notable Union Army physician, legislator and author. 
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

The Tidings-Jarrett House 100 - 102 Allegheny Avenue Towson, Mary­
land is located on the north-west corner of the intersection of Allegh­
eny Avenue and Washington Avenue. This two story, double frame house 
wa.s originally built as a two f'amily

1
residence, probably between A,pril 

and July 1857 and positively by 1864. Over the years it has been used 
as both homes and professional offices. The structure occupies a prom­
inent corner on two of Towson•s busiest streets. ihe major axis of' the 
house runs north and south, with a common wall dividing the east and 
west portions into two seperate dwellings. Each portion originally 
measured 2!~ X 66 f'eet. The building consists o:f a very s~r:metrica.l two 
story, rectangular central block, measuring 48 .feet in length on the 
east-west_ axis of the south .facade. There are two, two story extensions 
to the north, one measuring apptaoximately 19 feet, the second 12 feet. 
The whole complex is rectangular with an asymetrical wing on the east 
.facade o:f the central block o.f #100. Since the building was originally 
tt I " shaped it is evident that alterations ·have taken place on both 
the east and west facades. The northern extension is somewhat lower than 
the central. block. 

There is a hip.roof on the central block, the main ax.is running 
east-west. The ridge is capped, however there is evidence that at one 
time ~here was a lantern/cupuola atop the ridge.1 There is a two and one 
half' :foot cornice with.a series of decorative brackets and :finials on 
the central block, typical of the Italianate style. The east wing o.f # 
100 has a f'lat roo:r and also :features a bracketed cornice with .finials. 
The northern extension has a hip roo:f which is perpendicular to the 
main block, this roo.f has unadorned overhanging eaves. 

Ther~ are inside end chimneys on the east and west ,ends o.f the roof 
of the central block and interior chimneys on the east and west sides 
o.f the north hip o.f the roof of the northern extension. 

The :foundation where visible on #102 is o.f uncou.rsed f'ieldstone 
and rubble covered with stucco. The foundation on #100 is rock faced 
ashlar on the east side o.f the main block and wing and stuccoed on the 
northern extension. 

The building/a is .frrune and covered with clapboard. On the west 
.facade o.f # 102 there is evidence o:f early clapboard on the central block 
.fastened with square-headed nails. 

The western portion o:f the double house has a three bay, one story 
open porch on the south .facade. Windows on the first floor o.f this f'ac­
ade are 4/6 light with wooden sash. The massive nine panel door is flan­
ked by sidelights and topped with a transom. The three bays on the second 
floor of this :facade are 4/4 light. The central block is two bays deep 
on the west .facade, these bays are also 4/4 light. The west side o.f the 
northern extension has been altered and is now 5 bays deep, with 6/6 
light windows or 20th century casements. 

# 100 the eastern portion of the house, built originally as a dup­
licate of ll 102 has been greatly altered on the south and east by 20th 
century alterations. These alterations have almost obscured the south 
.facade of' both the ,central block and east wing. On the f'irst .floor the , 
original three bay south f'acade is still visible thQugh'~ partially obscured 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
continued 
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Physical condition continued 

by a glassed in porch. This porch is 7ft 8in deep on the west side of the 
south .facade and is extended easterly to include .five bays, obliterating 
the south .facade of the east wing with alterations. On the second floor, 
a glassed in sunporch completely envelopes and wraps around the south por 
tions of' both the central block and east wing leaving only one bay visibl 
on the south side of the east wing, on the second floo~. The central bloc 
extends north two bays on the east side beyond the east wing. These bays 
appear to have been altered at the time the east wing was added. All bays 
on the east .facade, central block and wing, are 4/4 light. There are six 
bays in the northern extension, all apparently 20th century alterations. 
The north facade of both east and west portions have been altered with 
20th century additions. 

Interior: # 100 Allegheny Avenue has been broken up into a multi-family 
dwelling and interior inspection was not possible. 

# 102 Allegheny Avenue, the west half of the two :family dwelling has 
been altered for professional offices. The entrance hall is located on 
the east side of' the building, it is 37i feet long, and 7 feet wide be­
tween stairs and west wall. Ceilings are 12 feet high as they are on the 
rest of the first floor. Opening off the hall and to the west are two 
parlors. a projection into the room on the west wall of the south west 
parlor suggests a fireplaceand/or chimney opening. this area has been en­
enclosed. 

There is a i'a."'lcy open string staircase .. on the east wall of the en­
t1""ance hall, with two ballisters per step. IJ.lhe step ends are scrolled and 

'there is a turned newel post. The post, bannister and ballisters are of 
dark wood probably mahogony. Floors are covered with linoleum. There was 
a f'ireplace, now covered, on the north wall·o:f a room at-the l;lorth end o:f 
the entrance hall-. , 

At the rear of' the main hall the oassage turns sharply to the west 
and north. The hall at this point is 2~ .feet wide, two small rooms open 
to the west of'f' the north passage. The north hall is 19 feet long ending 
in a room at the north end o.f the building. A small 11Lu shaped room opens 
to the east off' of this. The 11L11 shaped room may have been part o:f the 
original kitchen. On its south wall th.ere is a closet with tongu~ and 
groove paneling on the doors. 'l1he doors are 2 f't 9 in high and 4i ft wide 
The interior oi' this closet is lined with canted bricks. A narrow one run 
set of stairs descends .from this room into the north east corner o:f the 
north end of the cellar. 

The entrance to the cellar is located beneath the stairs at the 
north end of the main hall. Walls in the cellar are of' U.'l'lcoursed field­
stone and rubble and the .floor is dirt. There are two bays on the south 
wall the easternmost is boarded, there is one bay on the west wall. The 
cellar is divided into three chambers south to north. In the southern, 
first roo:m, there is a thwartwise summer beam as well as a length wise 
sunmier beam. There are 3 X 8 beams spliced together, butt jointed and 
held by trunnels every two feet. The thwartwise beam is supported by two 
stone pillars, each one a..nd a half feet square. 

Below the newel for the main staircase there is a carpenter•s joint 
3 inches in diameter, projecting 10 inches a.nd held with a square wooden 
peg. There is a layer of brick on the east wall above the fieldstone and 
rubble and under the sepera.ting wall between the two dwellings. The cell­
ars are not connected. The 3 X 8 traverse joists appear to be vertically 
sawed although mechanically made. Under the support walls there is a 
transverse sill supporting beam, spliced through and pegged. on the west 

,. 
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Interior continued: 

• .,all of the main room there is a projection into the room which appears 
,oo narrow to have been a fireplace, although carpenter's joints with supp 
orting trunnels indicate a possible hearth support. 

The middle room is reached through an opening in the north wall of 
the main,southern, room. There is a stone fireplace like arrangement in 
the middle of the'roorn with its long axis east-west. It appears to be dir­
ectly b~neath the brick lined closet and enclosed fireplace on the first 
floor. There are hearth supports in the ceiling south of this stone arr­
angement. 

The north portion of the cellar is reached by going to the east or 
west side of the stone arran~ement in the middle room. This north section 
is approximately nine f'eet deep, with an eight foot extension to the west 
beyond the middle section.There is. one covered bay on the west wall. A 
single run of steep steps in the north-east corner: leads to the possibl;e 
former kitchen on the first floor and on the north wall another set of 
steep steps leads to the outside. There is continuity of construction in 
all three rooms. 

Open-well, two run stairs lead to the second floor. The bannister ex• 
tends in graceful curves to meet the east wall at the top. Two rooms open 
to the west from the second floor, south main hall and one room to the 
south. The latter contains an early 20th century electric light fixture. 

Access to the attic at the south end of the house is by a single run 
of steep enclosed winders, located on the east wall of the house. A door 
on the east wall at the attic landing leads into the south attic of # 100. 
A single set of broad stairs on the west wall of # 100 leads to the 2nd 
~loor. There is a small room to the north of the landing in #102, where 
/he plaster had fallen off a. glimpse of the roof showed 3 X 4 rafters. 

There also were purlins up to 13 inches wide, cut an angle to accomodate 
the hip roo.f. There were machine cut nails poking through. The roof is 
modern, replacing what was probably a lantern which straddled the inter­
ior walls. This lantern/cupuola was reached by a single set of enclosed 
winders on the west side of' the attic landing. These stairs are now 
blocked off. There is a ridge pole. 

l\Iorth end of: the second floor: Proceeding north from the landing of 
the first run of stairs, the passage again doglegs to the west and north 
One run stairs, directly under the north attic stairs, lead down two 
flights to the outside. There are two rooms on the west side of the north 
passage. In the most southerly of these a fireplace on the north wall has 
recently been enclosed. Interior~ window and door frames in the centi"al 
block feature an architrave trim, while those in the northern extension 
are plain. 

A broad, single run of enclosed stairs leads to t;he north attic. 
This room is finished, the walls are plastered with lime and hair and 
wall papered, there are simple baseboards and moulding. Several trap­
doors, in the sloping ceiling, lead to the roof'. There is also a trap 
door into the eaves on the west side. There is evidence that a stove had 
been placed next to the chimney wall on the north side of the room. This 
chimney location roughly corresponds to the brick lined closet and fire 
place on the 1st floor, the stone arrangement in the cellar and the fire­
place in the room on the second floor • 

• Deed H.M.F. 18/275, indicates parcel of land by indenture 13 April 
1857 conireyed by Enos .SJ1.Ledley to Edwin R. Tidings :for ~~750 
Deed H.M.F. 19/170 Edwin R. Tidings to Sarah Ann Botll1ds 15 July 1857 
$3,000 parcel •••• beginning NW intersection Washington and Allegheny 
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Physical Condition Exterior Footnotes continued: 

Avenue ••• improvements ••• 
Note jump in price between April and July 1857 

Will J.L.R. 2/402 Edwin R. Tidings probated 13 December 1864 ••• rererred 
to aunt Sarah .Ann Bounds ••• house or houses to be sold ••• 
2. Airial photograph, taken in 1932, in possession or Mr Le Roy Haile 

shows 100/102 with lantern/cupuola 
Structural evidence in south attic or # 102, i.e. closed o£r stairs to 
lantern 
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Local History 

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE The Tidings-Jarrett House, :Crom its construction be­
tween 1857-1864 was planned as a two family dwelling. It is a good ex­
a.rnple or the bracketed-Italianate style o:r architecture and one o:r the 
:rew remaining houses o:r this style and mid-nineteenth century.period, 
remaining in central Towson. The house is important not only for its 
architecture but :ror the locally prominent citizens who lived and some.:r 
times had their professional of:rices there. 

:rhe land on which the house stands was a small part of several 
tracts lef't to Dr Grafton M. Bosley by his uncle Dr Josiah Marsh. These 
tracts included n James t Meadows 11 , 11Gunner ts Range n and, ff Gott• s Hope 11 ,. Dr 

,.~.,Bosley was the son o:r Amon and Rebecca Marsh Bosley. He was born March 
8, 1825 and graduated from Dickinson College in Carlisle, Pa. in 1844 
and .from the medical school of the University o.f Maryland in 1847. He 

:- entered practice with his uncle Dr Marsh in 1848. Josiah Marsh died in 
1850, without issue and his nephew inherited his large real estate hold­
ings in Towson~ In 1854 Dr Bosley gave six acres of land in Towson to 
the Baltimore County Commissioners, :ror the errection of a courthouse 
and jail. In the same year he sold 59 acres o:r land,including the dwell­
ing site, to Et1os Smedley of Chester County, Pa., for $21,300.::<. 

Dr· Edwin R. Tidings, who is credited with building the house be­
tween 1857-1864,,purchased the house site,· 96X150 :feet, from Enos Smed­
ley on April 13, 1857 f'or $750? Dr Tidings was the son of' William and 
Anna Randall Tidings .. o:r An.llapolis and Baltimore. Ai'ter the death of his 
parents he and his brother Richard were brought up by their aunt Mrs 
Sarah Bounds. Dr Tidings was a physician and practiced in Towson, in 
1863 he formed a partnership with Dr Jackson Piper. Dr Tidings died un­
married in 1864, at the age of' 33. His property was sold,at public auct­
ion, by his executor to Dr .Tames H. Jarrett o:f Harford County by two 
assignments of lease, one dated May 22, 1865 .for $2,865, the other April 
24, 1867 for $3,305.!LJ-

Dr Jarrett was the son o:f Luther and Julia A. Jarrett of Harf'ord 
County. The town o:f Jarrettsville was named in honor of the Jarrett fa:JJl• 
ily. James Jarrett was born February 24, 1832. He graduated from Dick­
inson College in Carlisle, Pa. in 1848 and the University of Maryland 
Medical School in 1852. He practiced in Jarrettsville un til the out­
break o:f the Civil War. He was the only member of his :ramily to join the 

·Union :Ei,orces. He was an assistant surgeon in the Purnell Legion for one 
year, then promoted to surgeon o:r the 7th Maryland Infantry attached to 

- the Army of' the Patomac. Su.ff'ering .from exhaustion and exertion he re­
s;gned his co:w..mission in 1864, because o:r disability1 lie decided to make 
his home and practice in Towson and bought the Allegneny Avenue house 
CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY continued 
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Significance continued 

from the Tidings estate. Dr Jarrett was a representative from Harford 
County to the State Legislature in 185.5-1856. In 1859 he was a member of 
the state convention that nominated Thomas Holliday Hicks .for governor. 
A.fter the Civil War he was public storekeeper under the general govern­
ment at Baltimore for four years and during the administration of Pres­
ident Arthur was a member of the pension examining board. 

The property was next sold to Willi&"lll P. Cole ,s the son of S. Howard 
and Emily Shaul Cole. William Cole was born May 18, 1859 and carne to Tow­
son as a young man. Being politically oriented he became deputy sherif'.f 
and clerk under Sherif'fs Jenni.fer and Holmes. In 1895 he was nominated 
.for Sheri.ff' by the Dera.ocratic party and won, despite an otherwise Repub­
lican landslide. Cole was the owner o:f f11UCh valuable property. The east 
wing ~ddition on #100 Allegheny Ave may have been added during his ot'ffier­
ship."° 

The site again changed hands in 1899 when there was an exchange or 
property between William Cole and :8udocia Stansbury.1 Mrs Stansbury was. 
the wi.f e/widow of' Thomas Stansbury o:f Eudowood Farm. 

A.fter l1rs Stansbury's death in 1907, her property was divided and 
sold by her executor.~ There .followed a sucession o.f oi:mers and occupants 
in both 100 and 102 Allegheny, including Alexander Carr and Dr J. William 
Harrower in # 100 and Dr E.A. Jones, Lawrence E. Pa.rksqand James P. Kelly 
in #102. During World War II Dr Clewell Howell occupied #102 as the only 
practicing physician in Towson during the war. 

Today # 102 Allegheny Ave contains o:fficas .for a group o:f pediatric­
ians, but on the exterior it still ret.ains much o.f its basic mid-nine­
teenth century charm. # 100 though greatly altered has the potential o.f 
being renovated to match its counterpart next door. 

1. Will Josiah Marsh D.M.B. & N.s,. 21.i../8 August 16, 185.0 
2. Deed D1'* Gra.fton Bosley to Enos-=-smedley, H.M.F •. 9/222 Juli' 24.-,. 18$4, 
Jo Deed Enos Smedley to Dr Edwin Tidings H.M.F. 18/275 April 13, 1857 
4. Assignment o.f lease Keech Executor to Dr .JamesJarrett J .H.L. 47 /178 

May 22, 1865 subject to ground rent 
Assignment o.f lease Keech executor to Dr James Jarrett J.H.L. 56/97 
April 24, 1867 improvements,, subject to mortgage 

5. Deed Martin L. Jarrett executor to William P. Cole W.P.C. 219/111 
September 9, 1896 Leasehold interest in lot 

6. Baltimore County Union NOV$mber'.14,.1896,. page_J" column z.u· ':elie house 
lately purchased by Sheri:ff' Cole, on the corner o.f Washington and Alle 
gheny Aves., Towson has been very handsomely improved,, adding g1'*eatly 
to the appearance of that section o.f the town •••• " 

7. Exchange of' lands between Willam P. Gole and Eudocia Stansbury N.B.M. 
238/447 July 17, 1899 

8. Will Eudocia Stansbury W.J.P. 15/77 July 16,, 1907 
9. Administration Acct Eudocia Stansbury 20/264 1908-1910 

All wills a.nd land records in Baltimore Cou.'l<).ty Courthouse Towson, Md. 
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Chain of Title 

Tidings - Jarrett House 100-102 Allegheny Avenue, Towson 

Deeds: HMF 9/222 

Indenture: 
HMF 18/275 

HMF 19/170 

Lease: GHC 21/125 

Deeds: J1iL 47/178 

Deeds: JHL 56/97 

Graf'ton M. Bosley to Enos Smedley ••• 24 July 1854 
$21,300 ••• p/o James Meadows, Gunners Range &Gotts 
Hope ••• p/o land ••• by indenture ••• 5 April 1825 •• 
conveyed by Samuel Donaldson & Abraham Yost trust. 
ees ••• to Dr Gra:rton Marsh ••• Old Court Road ••• to 
York Turnpike ••• to Odd Fellows Lot (1851) ••• 
toll gate lot ••• 59 acres (except courthouse lot) 
••• which Bosley acquired ••• :f'rom uncle ••• Josiah 
Marsh ••• ref ••• wills DMP&NS 24/8 

Enos Smedley and ·wife of Easttown Twp., Chester Co 
Pa. to Edwin R. Tidings of' Towsontow.n ••• 13 April 
1857 ••• $750 ••• parcel ••• North/West corner Wash• 
ington & Allegheny ••• being part of' tract or par­
cel ••• indenture ••• 24 July 1854 HMF 9/123 

Edwin R. Tidings to Sarah Ann Bounds ••• 15 July 
1857 ••• $3,000 ••• parcel ••• Bg N/W intersection 
of' Washington &Allegheny Aves..... same as b:y ind.en 
ture 13 April 1857 ••• HMF 18/275 ••• oonv b7 li:o.oa 
Smedley & wife ~? .. ~~~~? R. Tidings ••• improvements 

Sarah Ann Bounds ••• lease to Edwin R. Tidings 31 
December 1857 ••• rent to be paid to her ••• same 
as indenture 15 ~uly 1857 H.M.F. 19/170 ••• $180 
year 

Wm. s. Keech Executor to Dr James H. Jarrett ••• 
Assignment of lease ••• 22 May 1865 ••• exr of last 
will & test of Edwin R. Tidings, late of Balto Bo • 
•• did on 25 April 1865 sell at public auction ••• 
the property&: premises to Dr. J.H. Jarrett ••• 
$3,305 ••• one half part of that piece or parcel ••• 
village of Towsontown which was demised & leased 
by Sarah Ann Bounds to Edwin R. Tidings by indent­
ure of' lease ••• 31 December 1857 ••• rec GHC 21/125 
••• subj to ground rent of' $90 ••• Begin west side 
of Wash St & Alleg Ave ••• westerly 49 18•• in to pt 
in a line drawn southerly from the partition wall 
dividing the two houses lately ovmed b7 Dr E. R. 
Tidings deceased ••• 150 ft to south side of' an 
alley 

'vlm S. Keech, Executor ••• Assignment to Dr J .H. 
Jarrett ••• 24 April 1867 ••• ret to Baltn:>. Co vl'31:llW!i' 
••• LWT of Dr Edwin R. Tidings ••• did sel.l at publl 
auction 19 April 1866 ••• $2865 ••• parce-1 ••• ref 
Bounds to Tidings Beginning at N/W intersection 
Wash & Alleg Aves••• 96 ft .front 
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